

m.x.

# United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys  
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

Vol. 22

December 27, 1974

No. 26

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
COMMENDATIONS	973
POINTS TO REMEMBER	
Communication Facilities, Protection of: Amended Guidelines for Investigation and Prosecution of Violations of 18 U.S.C. 1362, in Connection With Broadcasting Stations Participating in the Emergency Broadcast System	975
Admission to Citizenship Over Objection of the Immigration and Naturalization Service	977
Transportation of Prisoners By U.S. Marshal's Service	977
ANTITRUST DIVISION	
SHERMAN ACT	
Court Denies Defendant's Motion to Dismiss	<u>U.S. v. Allan Molasky, et al.</u> 978
CIVIL DIVISION	
EMPLOYEE DISCHARGE	
Sixth Circuit Holds that "Conduct Unbecoming a Postal Employee" Not Unconstitutionally Vague.	<u>Markopoulos v. U.S. Postal Service (C.A. 6)</u> 982
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT	
District of Columbia Circuit Overturns District Court Decision Requiring Disclosure by Federal Reserve Board of Bank Interest-Rate Data Elicited in Voluntary Survey	<u>Consumers Union v. Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System</u> 983

CIVIL DIVISION

SOCIAL SECURITY

Sixth Circuit Holds that Sixty-Day Period  
Provided for Appeals From Denial of Disability  
Benefits is Jurisdictional

Eugene F. Whipp v. Caspar  
Weinberger, Secretary of  
Health, Education, and Welfare  
(C.A. 6) 985

CRIMINAL DIVISION

MEDICARE FRAUD

U.S. v. Richard J. Kones,  
M.D. 986

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION

PUBLIC LANDS

Injunction Against Road Construction  
Pending Wilderness Study Sustained

Viavant v. Trans-Delta Oil  
and Gas Company, Inc. and  
Morton (C.A. 10) 987

Survey; Estoppel

U.S. v. Ruby Company; and  
Ruby Company v. Udall 988

ENVIRONMENT

Program Environmental Impact Statement For  
Mississippi River Navigation Project; Require-  
ment of Congressional Consent To Construction

Atchison, Topeka and Santa  
Fe Railway Co., et al. v.  
Callaway, et al. 989

PUBLIC LANDS

Wild Free-Roaming Horses and Burros Act;  
Authority of State To Determine Ownership  
Claims By Private Individuals.

The American Horse Protection  
Association, et al. v. U.S.  
Department of the Interior,  
et al. 990

APPENDIX

RULE 6 (e). The Grand Jury. Secrecy of Proceedings and Disclosure.	993
RULE 11 Pleas.	
<u>U.S. v. George Bettelyoun</u>	995
RULE 12(b)(2). Pleading and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objections. The Motion Raising Defenses and Objections. Defenses and Objections Which Must Be Raised.	
<u>U.S. v. Alvin E. Young</u>	997
RULE 12(b)(2). Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objections. The Motion Raising Defenses and Objections. Defenses and Objections Which Must Be Raised.	
RULE 41(f). Search and Seizure. Motion to Suppress.	
<u>U.S. v. Alphonse Sisca</u>	999
RULE 17(c). Subpoena. For Production of Documentary Evidence and of Objects.	
	1001
RULE 21(b). Transfer From the District for Trial. Transfer in Other Cases.	
<u>U.S. v. John D. McGregor</u>	1003
RULE 40. Commitment to Another District; Removal.	
<u>Chele Graham v. John deWinter, U.S. Marshal, District of Maine</u>	1005
RULE 41(f). Search and Seizure. Motion to Suppress.	
<u>U.S. v. Alphonse Sisca</u>	1007

Vol. 22

December 27, 1974

No. 26

COMMENDATIONS

Assistant United States Attorneys Gary Hagmand and Dennis Lewis, Eastern District of Texas, have been commended by Mr. Rex D. Davis, Director, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms for their exemplary performance in connection with prosecution of a case involving the interstate transportation of 140,000 rounds of stolen military ammunition which resulted in the conviction of Earl F. Schreiber for violations of the Gun Control Act of 1968 and conspiracy.

United States Attorney Eugene Siler and Assistant United States Attorney William Kirkland of the Eastern District of Kentucky, have been commended by Abraham Geller, President of Geller's Stores Company, for their excellent handling of the case of U.S. v. Clinton Knuckles, et al.

POINTS TO REMEMBERCommunication Facilities, Protection of: Amended Guidelines for Investigation and Prosecution of Violations of 18 U.S.C. 1362, in Connection With Broadcasting Stations Participating in the Emergency Broadcast System

In volume 19, United States Attorneys Bulletin, pages 453-454, (September, 1971) investigative and prosecutive guidelines were published detailing those conditions under which Federal jurisdiction should be asserted for violations of Section 1362 of Title 18, United States Code. Such guidance was promulgated as a result of a Congressional amendment to Section 1362 designed to extend its protection against acts of willful and malicious destruction to all communications facilities used or intended to be used for military or civil defense functions of the United States. The Department's policy, as then published, limited the circumstances under which Federal jurisdiction was to be asserted to those acts perpetrated against member stations of the Emergency Broadcast System (EBS) within the Emergency Action Notification System (EANS). Protection was afforded to these stations inasmuch as they provided the President and the Federal Government, as well as state and local government, with an expeditious means of communicating with the general public during an emergency action condition. The EBS, therefore, functioned in a way similar to its predecessor, the CONELRAD System, which was in existence at the time of the 1961 amendment. The Department's limitation of Federal jurisdiction to offenses against EBS stations was predicated upon the intent of Congress that section 1362 was not intended to cover all communications and broadcast facilities within the EANS, but rather, only those portions of the facilities which were deemed vital and necessary for military and civil defense functions.

In early 1972, the Federal Communications Commission reorganized and significantly expanded the EBS by issuing EBS authorizations to nearly all existing broadcast stations. This resulted in an increase in active station participation in the EBS from 40% to over 95% of the total broadcast stations in the United States. In so reorganizing the EBS, little if any resemblance remains to the previous CONELRAD or EBS programs and, under existing Departmental investigative and prosecutive guidelines, more than 8000 stations would now be afforded the protection of section 1362 by virtue of their EBS designations. In point of fact, however, the vast majority of these stations serve no vital or necessary military or civil defense function.

Further study of the new EBS program disclosed that, within that system, there are 490 operational areas. Within each operational area, there is a key station known as a number 1 Common Program Control Station (CPCS-1). The function of CPCS-1 stations parallels that of those stations operating within the earlier EBS. There are also some 600 broadcast stations which participate in the EBS Protected Station Program, 400 of which are also CPSC-1 stations. Such protected stations are considered vital to EBS inasmuch as they maintain government owned emergency equipment in a fallout-protected environment. Within the reorganized EBS, therefore, there are approximately 690 broadcast stations which, either by virtue of their CPCS-1 designation or participation in the EBS Protected Station Program, serve a function which can be described as vital and necessary to the military or civil defense functions of the United States. Therefore, in order to continue to effectuate Congressionally enacted policy and to achieve uniform application of this statute in all judicial districts, only these broadcast facilities shall now be afforded protection under section 1362 of Title 18, United States Code.

Upon receipt of information that a broadcast facility has been the victim of willful or malicious destruction of its property, initial inquiries should be directed toward ascertaining whether the facility is a member of EBS and, if so, its exact EBS designation. Absent an assigned F.C.C. designation as a CPCS-1 or a protected station, section 1362 should not be used as the basis for institution of any investigation by the FBI.

In many cases, the victim facility may be in a position to provide initial information as to its EBS status. Such information, however, should not be relied upon in making a determination as to whether Federal jurisdiction will be asserted. Such a determination should be made only after ascertaining from the regional office of the F.C.C. whether the victim facility is a CPCS-1 or a protected station within the EBS.

(Criminal Division)

## POINTS TO REMEMBER

Admission to Citizenship Over Objection of the  
Immigration and Naturalization Service

The Immigration and Naturalization Service has recently issued instructions to its field offices that the appropriate United States Attorney is to be notified immediately whenever a petitioner has been admitted to citizenship over Service objection. Any United States Attorney receiving such a notification should make certain that a notice of appeal is filed within the prescribed time, preferably at a time shortly before the deadline in order to allow time for consideration within the Department as to the advisability of appealing the order of the court admitting the petitioner to citizenship. Additionally, the United States Attorney should promptly furnish to the Government Regulations Section of the Criminal Division a copy of the court's order and any other pertinent documents available, together with his recommendation regarding an appeal.

Transportation of Prisoners By U.S. Marshal's Service

The Marshal's Service has experienced a substantial increase in the number of prisoners which it has had to move by air. This has been due in many cases, to the short notice given the local United States Marshals office by Assistant United States Attorneys. Usually the Marshals Service is given three days or less notice, necessitating the very expensive movement by air of these individuals.

In an effort to reduce costly air transportation, increase efficiency and provide better service to the courts, Assistant United States Attorneys should provide the United Marshals Service with notification at least fourteen days prior to the date on which the prisoner is needed within the district. This would allow for proper scheduling via car or bus.

ANTITRUST DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

DISTRICT COURTSHERMAN ACT

COURT DENIES DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS.

United States v. Allan Molasky, et al., (Cr. 73-514B; November 6, 1974; DJ 60-127-108)

On November 6, 1974, Chief Judge Frederick Heebe entered an opinion and order denying defendants' motion to dismiss in this action. The motion to dismiss was based upon six grounds, principally allegations of misconduct or improprieties by Government counsel in the conduct of the grand jury proceedings which led to the return of the indictment. The motion to dismiss as originally filed was unsupported by evidence or affidavit. Subsequently defense counsel filed an affidavit in support of one charge that he had relied upon an alleged agreement of Government attorneys to notify him in advance of the appearance of all present or prior employees of the defendant Pierce News Co. before the grand jury and had accordingly failed to counsel such witnesses in advance of their appearance. After the Government challenged this affidavit's contentions in oral argument, the defense withdrew this asserted ground for the motion to dismiss.

In the course of the grand jury proceedings, counsel for the then prospective defendants had taken a very aggressive stance, asserting that under the so-called "Fruchtman: decision, In re Grand Jury Summoned October 12, 1970, 321 F. Supp. 238, 240 (N.D. Ohio 1970), prospective defendants' counsel have a clearly established right to protect their client's interests by systematic debriefing and other active surveillance of grand jury activity. Defense counsel at one point asserted a right to be notified in advance of each grand jury session and at each session he became aware of, stationed counsel and usually an industry "spotter" outside the door to the grand jury room seeking to "debrief" each witness after completion of his testifying. After witnesses had complained that they were harassed

and two such witnesses were brought to Judge Herbert Christenberry, the Judge ordered that debriefing counsel stay off the floor of the Court House where the grand jury met during grand jury sessions. Subsequently, on February 28, 1973 the District Court, en banc, filed a set of written security rules which included among others the provisions:

4a. Persons, including attorneys, other than attorneys whose clients may be called to appear to give testimony before a grand jury, who are not witnesses, government attorneys, agents or employees or court personnel concerned with any grand jury proceeding, shall not be allowed to remain in any hall of any floor, or the environs thereof, on which a grand jury may convene or be in session.

4b. No person shall question, interview or interfere with, or attempt so to do, any person who may testify or who has testified before any grand jury within any areas of the court building in which the Court's or the grand jury's business are conducted. This prohibition shall not be applicable to government or investigative agents.

Defendants' motion to dismiss did not formally challenge the propriety of either Judge Christenberry's order on the Security Rules but rather charged that Government counsel had "sought" or "acquiesced in" Judge Christenberry's order barring them from standing in an area where they could observe the identity of grand jury witnesses. In denying this ground for this motion Judge Heebe's opinion stated:

. . . the Court is unable to find the slightest impropriety in any counsel securing a valid order from a court. If some fraud were alleged in the procuring of a court order, that would present a different problem. But defendants' only complaint in this regard appears to be that they disagree with the district judge's decision, in another section of this court, to issue an injunction. Certainly the securing

of a valid court order, or acquiescing" in same, cannot support a motion to dismiss.

Judge Heebe distinguished the "Fruchtman" opinion as one in which it was held impermissible for government attorneys to instruct witnesses to report back to the grand jury if interrogated "because the sole purpose of the instruction was to discourage witnesses from speaking with defendants." Here, the Court pointed out no such conduct was alleged.

The other asserted grounds for the motion included allegations that grand jury questioning intruded into confidential attorney-client relationships, that Government attorney's discouraged attorneys from consenting to be debriefed, prejudicial language was employed before the grand jury and there was unnecessary delay between the "completion" of the grand jury investigation in December 1972 and the return of an indictment in October 1973. The Government contested these allegations pointing out that additional subpoenas were served and oral testimony taken subsequent to December 1972. The Court stated:

Even assuming that the investigation ended ten months prior to the indictment, defendants have not shown prejudice necessary to dismiss the indictment. Defendants recognize that this is a pre-indictment delay and that the Sixth Amendment protection does not apply, but rely instead on Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. While the case relies in part on oral conversations, some of which occurred almost three and one-half years from the date this case will be tried, any prejudice from this delay falls at least as heavily upon the prosecution, which must reconstruct the events and conversations in the first instance. Moreover, we note that the defendants are aided by detailed answers of the government in response to their request for an extensive bill of particulars. On consideration of the entire case, we do not find that defendant has proven sufficient prejudice to warrant dismissal under Rule 48.

The Court pointed out that the remaining grounds were basically unsupported even though defendants had had ample

opportunity to obtain supporting facts had this been any.

Staff: John Poole, Bruce Pearson, Steven Douse

\*

\*

\*

CIVIL DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Carla A. Hills

COURT OF APPEALS

EMPLOYEE DISCHARGE

SIXTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT "CONDUCT UNBECOMING A POSTAL EMPLOYEE" NOT UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE.

Markopoulos v. United States Postal Service (C.A. 6, No. 74-1068, December 4, 1974; D.J. 145-5-3617).

Plaintiff, a male postal employee, had been suspended from his position because two female postal service patrons had complained that, while on post office premises and elsewhere, he had made improper advances to them. Plaintiff sought to set aside the disciplinary action on the ground that the notice of charges against him ("conduct unbecoming a postal service employee") was unconstitutionally vague and because the two complaining witnesses had not appeared at his disciplinary hearing. The district court entered judgment in favor of the Postal Service.

On plaintiff's appeal, the Sixth Circuit, in a per curiam opinion, affirmed. The court held that in the circumstances of this case, the notice of charges was not unconstitutionally vague because plaintiff had been given detailed information about the charges and a reasonable opportunity to answer them. The court did not reach the question of the failure of the complaining witnesses to appear at the disciplinary hearing because, according to the court, the suspension was based upon admissions that plaintiff himself had made to Postal Service investigators.

Staff: David Cohen (Civil Division)

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA CIRCUIT OVERTURNS DISTRICT COURT DECISION REQUIRING DISCLOSURE BY FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD OF BANK INTEREST-RATE DATA ELICITED IN VOLUNTARY SURVEY.

Consumers Union v. Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (D.C. Cir., No. 74-1620, November 27, 1974; D.J. 145-105-78).

In this Freedom of Information Act suit, Consumers Union sought to compel the disclosure of the interest-rate information elicited from 370 private banks in the course of a voluntary Federal Reserve Board survey of prevailing credit conditions. The government contended that this information was exempt from compelled disclosure under exemption 4 -- as "commercial or financial information obtained from a person and privileged or confidential" -- and exemption 8 -- as "operation, or condition reports prepared by, on behalf of, or for the use of an agency responsible for the regulation or supervision of financial institutions." In granting summary judgment for the plaintiffs, the district court held that these exemptions were not applicable, and ordered the release of the documents for the reason that all of this information had "previously been made available to the public by [its] source."

On appeal, plaintiffs conceded that their actual interest extended to only a fraction of the information requested by the Board in its survey. The D.C. Circuit overturned the district court's decision and remanded for further proceedings. In its memorandum order, the Court stated:

The lesson of this case's history in this court seems to be that not all loans are the same for the purpose of being held to be in the public domain, and that the publication of one set of interest rates is not tantamount to the release of all interest rate information for all loans. A loan to finance the purchase of a new car, where credit is extended mainly by reference to the security provided by the car, may well have a standardized interest rate which is widely publicized by the bank in order to attract all comers. Conversely, loans for "other consumer goods" or "other personal expenditures" may turn heavily on a personal appraisal of the resources and reliability of the individual loan applicant, with interest rates varying widely from borrower to borrower, and with the lender correspondingly refraining, for obvious reasons, from publicizing the terms on which it is doing business.

Accordingly, the court of appeals remanded the case to the district court with instructions that "[f]indings should be made of the extent to which [plaintiffs] have shown their ability to elicit the same information through direct inquiry of the banks." Although the court of appeals did not discuss the applicability of the exemptions, the unstated premise of the decision is that confidential responses to financial questionnaires are exempt from disclosure if the respondents have not previously made the same information public.

Staff: Leonard Schaitman and Ronald R. Glancz  
(Civil Division)

SOCIAL SECURITY

SIXTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT SIXTY-DAY PERIOD PROVIDED FOR APPEALS FROM DENIAL OF DISABILITY BENEFITS IS JURISDICTIONAL.

Eugene F. Whipp v. Caspar Weinberger, Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare (C.A. 6, No. 74-1475, December 2, 1974; D.J. 137-58-669).

In this social security disability case, claimant was denied benefits and informed of this decision by letter from the Appeals Council of the Department of Health, Education and Welfare. Claimant was informed by that letter that he had sixty days "from this date" to appeal that decision in district court. 42 U.S.C. 405(g) establishes this sixty-day period and the statute also enables the Secretary of H.E.W. to extend the period. Claimant, without having requested any extension from H.E.W., filed his complaint on the sixty-first day after the date of mailing of the Appeals Council's letter.

The Secretary moved to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction. The district court denied the motion and held that the sixty-day period specified in 42 U.S.C. 405(g) was not jurisdictional, but rather was a mere guideline. The district court also found that the time period ran from the date of receipt of the letter. The district court reversed the Secretary's findings and granted the claimant benefits.

On appeal, the Sixth Circuit reversed, and accepted our position that the sixty-day period in 42 U.S.C. 405(g) was jurisdictional and did run from the date of mailing of the Appeals Council's letter. The Court remanded without prejudice to claimant's rights under both 42 U.S.C. 405(g) and 20 C.F.R. 404.954 to seek an extension from the Appeals Council to file his complaint.

Staff: Donald Etra (Civil Division)

CRIMINAL DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Henry E. Petersen

DISTRICT COURT

MEDICARE FRAUD

United States v. Richard J. Kones, M.D., --F.Supp.--  
(S.D.N.Y. 1974). D.J. 137-51-474.

A significant sentence was imposed in the Southern District of New York upon a doctor for medicare fraud.

On November 18, 1974, Dr. Richard J. Kones was sentenced to 5 years imprisonment and fined \$30,000. Dr. Kones was required to serve 30 days in confinement. Execution of the remainder of the prison term was suspended. Special conditions of probation required the doctor to donate four days per month to service in a mental hospital, prison, or other governmental institution.

Staff: United States Attorney Paul J. Curran, (S.D.N.Y.)

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Wallace H. Johnson

COURT OF APPEALS

PUBLIC LANDS

INJUNCTION AGAINST ROAD CONSTRUCTION PENDING  
WILDERNESS STUDY SUSTAINED.

Viavant v. Trans-Delta Oil and Gas Co., Inc., and  
Morton (C.A. 10, No. 74-1115, Nov. 27, 1974; D.J. 90-1-18-1048).

In an appeal by Trans-Delta, an oil and gas lessee in the Glen Canyon National Recreation Area, the court of appeals, in an opinion not for publication, affirmed an order granting a preliminary injunction restraining Trans-Delta from constructing and improving an access road to its lease site traversing portions of the recreation area and Capitol Reef National Park. Plaintiffs had alleged, first, that NEPA required the Park Service to prepare an environmental impact statement before it could authorize improvement and construction of the access road, and, second, that Section 9 of the Glen Canyon Recreation Act, which directs the Secretary of the Interior to study that area for possible wilderness preservation, precludes him from taking any action inconsistent with possible wilderness classification pending completion of his study. Prior to appeal the Government had conceded the necessity of preparing a NEPA statement, and had begun to prepare one. It did not resist the injunction, arguing solely that the Secretary's discretionary powers authorized him to grant access to a mineral lease site during the pendency of a wilderness study, an issue the court of appeals declined to reach, saying that the district court could consider this as grounds for modification or dissolution of the injunction in further proceedings. The court rejected all of Trans-Delta's arguments: (1) failure to make detailed findings and conclusions, (2) no irreparable injury, (3) lack of jurisdiction under the APA, (4) lack of standing, and (5) inadequate security bond of \$1,500.

Staff: Jacques B. Gelin (Land and Natural Resources  
Division).

DISTRICT COURTSPUBLIC LANDS

SURVEY; ESTOPPEL.

United States v. Ruby Company (Civil No. 4-68-20, D. Idaho; D.J. 90-1-5-1016); and Ruby Company v. Udall (Civil No. 4-65-13, D. Idaho; D.J. 90-1-4-120).

On March 15, 1965, the Ruby Company initiated an action against the Secretary of the Interior seeking to set aside a survey of lands omitted from a public land survey conducted in 1877. The lands involved are situated along the Snake River in eastern Idaho. The defendants moved to dismiss the complaint as being an unconsented suit against the United States.

In view of the fact that the court felt that its jurisdiction was questionable, on March 20, 1968, the United States instituted an action to quiet title to the lands involved. In its complaint the United States alleged that the 1877 survey of the meanders was grossly erroneous and fictitious, and, therefore, the lands lying between the 1877 meander and the river were omitted from the original survey. Defendants affirmatively alleged in their answer that the United States was estopped to now claim the lands in question in view of past conduct of government officials.

After a trial without a jury, the court found that the original survey of 1877 was grossly erroneous. The court found that the 1877 survey contained many errors, such as that the 1877 meander corners coincided with the present day meander corners at the section lines, but between section lines the meanders frequently varied, that the 1877 meander lines surveyed in the township were completed in two days - a "physical impossibility," and that many of the meander lines were never run on the ground but were wholly fictitious.

With regard to the affirmative defense, the court concluded that as a matter of law estoppel does not lie against the United States. Also, the action brought by Ruby was dismissed on jurisdictional grounds.

Staff: John E. Lindsfold (Land and Natural Resources Division).

ENVIRONMENT

PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT FOR  
MISSISSIPPI RIVER NAVIGATION PROJECT; REQUIREMENT OF  
CONGRESSIONAL CONSENT TO CONSTRUCTION.

Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railway Co., et al. v.  
Callaway, et al. (D. D.C., No. 74-1190, Sept. 5, 1974;  
D.J. 90-1-4-1003).

A group of railroads, in an action consolidated with a suit brought by environmental groups, sued to enjoin the construction of a replacement for a navigation facility which presently operates as a part of the Upper Mississippi Waterway System.

Plaintiffs contended that (1) insufficient authority for the construction had been obtained from Congress; and (2) that the EIS for the project was inadequate for, among other reasons, the failure to consider impacts from replacement or enlargement of other facilities on the Upper Mississippi Waterway System which would be required to accommodate traffic which would pass through the replacement facility. The greater amount of traffic was utilized by the Corps of Engineers in calculating the benefit cost ration of the project. Plaintiffs argued that the replacement of the single navigation facility should be considered an integral part of a program to upgrade the entire system even though the Corps disclaimed any commitment to a program.

On granting a preliminary injunction Judge Charles Richey found a lack of congressional consent for the project in violation of 33 U.S.C. sec. 401. He found that appropriation of construction funds did not constitute consent, relying entirely for this proposition on rules of procedure adopted by the Congress.

As to the EIS the court concluded that the Corps was required to consider the "systemic impact resulting from the rebuilding of Locks and Dam 26." This was generally defined as the "impact the proposed structure and increased traffic will have" on the entire system. The court found as a fact that the construction of the first project was "the decision to expand the capacity of the entire system." That decision, in the court's view, established the scope of the necessary EIS.

Staff: Irwin Schroeder (Land and Natural  
Resources Division).

PUBLIC LANDS

WILD FREE-ROAMING HORSES AND BURROS ACT; AUTHORITY  
OF STATE TO DETERMINE OWNERSHIP CLAIMS BY PRIVATE INDIVIDUALS.

The American Horse Protection Association, et al. v.  
U.S. Department of the Interior, et al. (Civil No. 661-73, USDC  
for DC; D.J. 90-3-10-173).

Plaintiffs filed this action on April 5, 1973, against the Departments of the Interior and Agriculture and various officers thereof alleging violation of the Wild Free-Roaming Horses and Burros Act, 16 U.S.C. sec. 1331 et seq., arising from a roundup of horses by private individuals on public lands in January and February 1973 near Howe, Idaho.

The horses were sent to Nebraska to be processed into dog food. Defendants stopped their slaughter and returned the horses to Idaho Falls, Idaho. Pursuant to federal regulations, which were promulgated in final form subsequent to the roundup, claims of ownership were filed by a private individual and Congressman Gude and Senator Abourezk. In accordance with a cooperative agreement with the State of Idaho, which was also entered into after the roundup, the Bureau of Land Management and the Forest Service requested the Idaho State Brand Inspector to determine the validity of the private ownership claims. A hearing was held in June 1974, and on September 3, 1974, the State Brand Inspector issued a decision concluding that both the living and dead horses involved in the roundup were owned by the private individual and, thus, were not wild and free-roaming within the meaning of the Act.

Shortly after the decision of the State Brand Inspector, defendants filed a motion for summary judgment contending that Congress intended under the Wild Horse Act to maintain in each State, and not vest in the Secretary of the Interior, the authority to determine the ownership of un-branded horses and burros on the public lands of the United States, and, therefore, the court was bound by the decision of the Idaho State Brand Inspector in this case. Plaintiffs, of course, were of a contrary view.

The court, after examining the language of the statute and the legislative history, concluded that Congress did intend that the state agencies were to continue to play a

key role in determining ownership claims by private individuals to horses found on public lands and that the Bureau of Land Management and the Forest Service were authorized to enter into the cooperative agreement with the State of Idaho under which the State Brand Inspector determined the horses involved in the Howe roundup to be owned by private individuals. Judgment was entered for defendants.

Staff: John E. Lindskold (Land and Natural Resources Division); Assistant United States Attorney Robert M. Werdig, Jr. (D. D.C.).

\*

\*

\*